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RESPONSE TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS QUESTIONS: 
 
  

1. QUESTION – Paragraph C.5.3.1 – How many discrete external UPS alarm inputs are currently 
 supported by the existing traffic signal controller firmware? 

 
RESPONSE:  
 
DDOT intends to task the current central system provider to upgrade the central system to 
provide interface with UPS systems in the field. 

 
DDOT may convert one of the current alarms to report “SYSTEM ON BATTERY BACKUP” as 
an interim solution. 

a.  Bidder shall provide a contract closure for this alarm. 
b. Vendor UPS system must also be capable of IP communications 
c. Vendor IP based system shall include central monitoring software. 
d. Vendor shall provide all documentation and API for possible integration into DDOT 

central traffic control system. 
e. DDOT may opt to establish an IP communication network out to intersections with UPS 

installation. 
  
2. QUESTION – Paragraph C.5.1.3.9 requires that “As an interim solution; UPS system must also 

be capable of serial communications via DDOT existing 170 controllers through available 
hardware port.” What are the communications protocol and message formats used to 
communicate UPS data information to the 170 controller? 

 
RESPONSE:   
 
a. DDOT current central and local traffic control systems are provided by McCain Inc. 
b. The bidder is expected to obtain protocol information directly. 
c. Bidder’s proposal shall include optional communications thru an available serial port 

in traffic controller. 
d. DDOT may opt to task current traffic signal system software and firmware provider 

(McCain Inc.) to revise system to incorporate UPS status into current Traffic System. 
 

3. QUESTION – Paragraph C.5.1.3.10 requires that “UPS supplier must comply with 
communications protocols currently used by DDOT QUICNET © system.”  Please 
provide documentation that details the applicable protocols. 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
a. Bidder shall contact McCain Inc. for all require protocol information. 
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4. QUESTION - Will the contractor be responsible for payment to PEPCO for disconnecting and 

reconnecting service to the controllers? 
 

RESPONSE:   
 

The contractor is responsible for coordination and payment to PEPCO. 
 
QUESTION - Will the contractor be responsible for payment to the MPD for uniformed 
flaggers? 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
The contractor is responsible for coordination and payment to MPD. 
 

5. QUESTION - C.5.1.5.3.1 (page 16) states that the contractor will be responsible for payment to 
DDOT if the COTR directs the use of DDOT traffic control officers in lieu of MPD officers. How 
is the contractor to quantify these costs? 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
The Rate for DDOT Traffic control officer is less than the MPD rate. 

 
6. QUESTION - Is a bid bond required for this IFB? 
 
 RESPONSE: 
 

No bond is required. 
  
7. QUESTION - C.5.1.1.3.1 states:  In the event DDOT traffic control officers are to be used, the 

contractor shall reimburse DDOT for the use of TCO personnel at their fully loaded rate.  
 

RESPONSE:   
 
 For Budgeting purposes, Bidder should assume that MPD will be used. 
 
8. QUESTION - What is the fully loaded rate of the TCO personnel? 
 

RESPONSE:   
  
 The TCO rate is less than MPD (Approximately 30.00 per hour, per officer). 
 
9. QUESTION - Is the contractor responsible for paying PEPCO fees? 
 

RESPONSE:   
 

The contractor is responsible for coordination and payment to PEPCO. 
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10. QUESTION - C.5.1.1.6 - The UPS inverter/charger must be UL/CSA listed. 

Our product is not currently listed by these agencies.  It is however Caltrans tested and 
approved for use.  Most of our products are UL Listed and have been designed with 
safety in mind.  We are in the early stages of working with UL on getting this product 
tested by them.  We will not have this complete by bid award or delivery.  Will our 
Caltrans approval be sufficient? 

 
RESPONSE:   
 
DDOT reserves the right to enforce this requirement, However, Bidder may be 
considered based on number of units in operation, Existence on the CALTRAN QPL, and 
Results of third party testing at bidder’s expense.  Vendor would be required to submit 
other municipal references compatible with Washington DC. 
  

11. QUESTION - C.5.1.2.9  - Operating temperature range for the entire UPS system, including 
liquid crystal displays, must be -40 degrees C to +70 degrees C, 5 to 95 percent relative 
humidity, non-condensing.  Our display is an extended temperature display which has a low end 
rating of -20 degrees C.  This is a typical value for an extended temperature display.  Will our 
display be acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
Yes 
 

12. QUESTION - C.5.1.2.12 - An integral system to prevent battery from destructive discharge and/ 
for overcharge must be provided. Charging must be a three step method and shall result in 
complete recharge of the basic 4-battery configuration in less than six (6) hours from a minimal 
state. Battery charging rates must be user adjustable at the unit to provide maximum flexibility in 
matching the unit and the type and size of batteries installed.  Our charger is a four step charger.  
See C.5.1.5.4 and C.5.1.5.5, they require “Battery recharge time from protective low cutoff to 80 
percent or more of full charge capacity shall not exceed 6 hours.”  The spec is inconsistent on the 
charging requirements based on these three points.  Our charger can provide a maximum of 20 
amps DC.  Our charger will charge 4-105Ah batteries from full discharge to 80% in 8.5 hrs, full 
charge in 11.5 hours.  Our battery charging rates are not user adjustable, but the user can select 
the type of battery, size and quantity.  The BBS uses this data for charging and battery percent 
calculations. 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
Acceptable 
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13. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.7 - Two independent programmable timers with two (2) times-of-day 

restrictions must be provided to allow the agency to set when the intersection will operate in 
flash mode and when it will operate in full color mode to the extent that the battery power is 
available.  Our BBS has one time of day timer.  Is one time of day timer acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
 To the extent, that DDOT May opt not to operate in flash; One time of day timer is acceptable. 
 
14. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.8 - A minimum of three user inputs must be provided for Emergency 

Power Off, Intrusion Alarms, and External Self Test.  We have one user input for External Self 
Test.  We do not have an input for Emergency Power Off or Intrusion Alarms.  Is this one input 
acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   
 
Acceptable 

 
15. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.9  - The UPS must be the capability to provide Ethernet and IP addressing 

communications for inclusion in systems with the capability for remote monitoring and 
programming. This capability must be provided internal to the unit. As an interim solution; UPS 
system must also be capable of serial communications via DDOT existing 170 controllers through 
available spare hardware port.  We have Ethernet, IP addressing, and serial communications.  We 
will adapt our serial to meet your protocol for serial communications. 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
Vendor must contact DDOT current traffic signal software and firmware provider for 
communications protocols. 
 

16. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.11- Operational: UPS must be sized with a minimum load of 1000 watts 
and sized to provide a minimum of 8 hours of full run-time operation for an intersection 
comprised of a traffic signal controller cabinet, LED traffic signal indications and 
LED pedestrian signal indications.  Our BBS is rated for 1100 watts and will run as long as load 
and battery capacity allow.  However, a requirement for 8 hours of full run time operation for a 
1000 watt load will require more battery amp hour capacity than your cabinet design allows.  Is 
the 8 hour figure based on a 1000 watt load?  Or are you merely stating that the inverter of the 
BBS has to be able to handle 1000 watts load?  What we need to know without question is what 
load is your 8 hour full run time based on? 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
DDOT Minimum run time will be 6 Hours. 
The Maximum Cabinet depth will remain as specified. 
A cabinet height of 40 inches is allowed 
A cabinet width of 19 inches is allowed. 
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17. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.12 - The maximum transfer time between the disruption of normal utility 

line voltage and providing a stabilized inverter line voltage from batteries must be less than 15 
milliseconds. A 15 millisecond maximum allowable transfer time must apply when switching 
from inverter line voltage to utility line voltage.  Our typical transfer time is 25 milliseconds.  
Most BBS specifications require a transfer time of 65 milliseconds.  Is our average transfer time 
of 25 milliseconds acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   

               
 65 milliseconds is acceptable 
 

18. QUESTION - C.5.1.3.16 - In situations where the line voltage is within the range of 80 VAC - 
185 VAC, commonly called "Brown-out Conditions", the UPS shall regulate the output voltage to 
the critical load to 120 VAC plus or minus 10% variance.  Our voltage input range for regulation 
is 80-160 Vac and we regulate the output voltage to be between 102-128 Vac.  Is our range 
acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
Acceptable 
 

19. QUESTION - C.5.1.4.2 - The UPS must be equipped with an input contact that can be defined as 
Emergency Power Off. This input shall cause the UPS to immediately turn off regardless of 
power source in use.  Our unit does not have this feature, will this be acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   
 
DDOT will consider this feature to value added. 
 

20. QUESTION - C.5.1.5.1 - Battery charging by the UPS must be a temperature compensated 
multi-stage process providing for the most efficient re-charge based on battery temperature and 
discharge state, providing a high charge when the battery is near-fully discharged and tapering off 
as the battery charge state reaches 80 percent or more fully charged. Battery charging rate must 
be user programmable at the unit to accommodate different size and types of batteries. As a 
minimum three (3) rates must be provided.  As mentioned earlier (see C.5.1.2.12 and C.5.1.5.5):  
The spec is inconsistent on the charging requirements based on these two points.  Our charger 
can provide a maximum of 20 amps DC.  Our charger will charge 4-105Ah batteries from full 
discharge to 80% in 8.5 hrs, full charge in 11.5 hours.  Our battery charging rates are not user 
adjustable, but the user can select the type of battery, size and quantity.  The BBS uses this data 
for charging and battery percent calculations. 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
 Acceptable 
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21. QUESTION - C.5.1.5.2 The UPS must have the capability to provide active battery charging 

balancing to insure that the charge is going to the appropriate batteries within the battery string 
and at the most desirable rates to maintain and extend the life of the batteries.  This item as 
mentioned appears to be the Alpha Guard product that is designed for 48 volt systems.  Our 
battery system voltage is 24 volts and the Alpha Guard is not designed for 24 volt systems.  Our 
four step charger does an excellent job of charging and maintaining charge on batteries.  Will our 
charging system be acceptable? 

                     
RESPONSE:   
 
DDOT will determine based on particular vendor’s system voltage and soundness of technical 
specifications.  All bidders must meet 6 hour run time requirement. 
 

22. QUESTION - C.5.1.5.3 - The battery supply voltage must be consistent with the load to 
minimize the current demands on the battery system to improve the efficiency of the system and 
maintain and extend the life of the batteries while providing the safest electrical environment 
possible for maintenance and service. To high of a DC voltage can create a more dangerous 
environment and too low of a DC voltage level means lower system efficiency. For a typical 1000 
watt design load, a supply voltage of 48 VDC is required.  Our battery supply voltage is 24Vdc 
and our BBS is highly efficient.  A 24 volt battery system also allows for a series parallel 
configuration of batteries.  This configuration gives the advantage of two batteries still being able 
to run the system if one battery were to fail open.  If a battery fails open a 48 volt system, the 
system would be dead.  Will our 24 volt battery system be acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE:   
 
DDOT will determine based on particular vendor’s system voltage and soundness of technical 
specifications.  All bidders must meet 6 hour run time requirement. 
 

23. QUESTION - C.5.1.5.5 - Battery recharge time from protective low cutoff to 80 percent or more 
of full charge capacity shall not exceed 6 hours.   As mentioned earlier (see C.5.1.2.12 and 
C.5.1.5.1): The spec is inconsistent on the charging requirements based on these two points.  Our 
charger can provide a maximum of 20 amps DC.  Our charger will charge 4-105Ah batteries from 
full discharge to 80% in 8.5 hrs, full charge in 11.5 hours.  Our battery charging rates are not user 
adjustable, but the user can select the type of battery, size and quantity.  The BBS uses this data 
for charging and battery percent calculations. 

 
RESPONSE:   

 
Acceptable 
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24. QUESTION - C.5.1.6.13 - Cabinet for UPS must be weatherproof and constructed of welded 

sheet anodized aluminum, 0.125-inch minimum. Cabinet finish must include graffiti resistant 
coating. Cabinet mounting attachments must be durable, corrosion resistant, compatible with the 
aluminum of the cabinet or isolated from it and of heavy-duty construction. Cabinets shall be no 
larger than 40 inches in height, 15 inches in width, and 10 inches in depth.  These dimensions 
may have to change depending on what your answers to run time and load requirements are. 

 
 RESPONSE:   
 

DDOT Minimum run time will be 6 Hours. 
The Maximum Cabinet depth will remain as specified. 
A cabinet height of 40 inches is allowed 
A cabinet width of 19 inches is allowed. 

 
 
25. QUESTION - The project description on the DC website for this project states” 

“RECEPTACLES, POWER, VEHICLE (TO CONNECT POWER SUPPLY ON TRUCKS TO 
ELECTRIC WINCH)”.  Is an external plug required on the BBS cabinet to make the connection 
to an electric winch on a truck?  We didn’t see anything specifically about this in the specs. 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
This is not a requirement in DCKA-2009-B-0010 - UPS for Traffic Signal Control Cabinets the  
following is a requirement. 
 
C.5.2.1.11 - UPS system must be connected to allow any existing generator ports to provide 
charging voltage to the battery banks during long term outages.  Additionally: The UPS cabinet 
must provide a means to interface to, and secure the District's existing Traffic signal emergency 
generators in the same manner as they are currently secured. 

 
26. QUESTION – The specifications call for an anodized cabinet with the anti-graffiti film.  The 

anti-graffiti film can be applied over powder coating but not on an anodized cabinet.  Should the 
cabinets be powder coated DC gray with anti-graffiti film? 
 
RESPONSE:   
 
UPS cabinet shall be powder coated and anti-graffiti coated to match the color of the District's 
existing 336 Super stretch cabinets. 

 


